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LEARNING IN HARMONY MULTI ACADEMY TRUST |

DIRECTORS' REPORT |
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2018

The Directors present their report together with the financial statements and auditor's report of the charitable
company for the year to 31 August 2018. The annual report serves the purposes of both a trustees report and a
director's report under company law.

The Directors present their report together with the financial statements and auditor's report of the charitable .
company for the year to 31 August 2018. The annual report serves the purposes of both a trustees' report and a
director's report under company Iaw

For that period, the Trust operated 8 academies in the London Borough of Newham and in the Borough of
Southend- on—Sea :

- London Borough of Newham:

+ John F Kennedy Special School for puplls aged 4 to 19. In the school census on- 18/01/2018 John F

* - Kennedy Special School had a pupil capacity of 110 and had a roll of 114.

"= Sheringham Primary School, for pupils aged 4 to 11. In the school census on 18/01/2018 Shenngham

- Primary School had a pupil capacity of 690 and had a roll of 658.

» Upton Cross Primary School, for pupils aged 3 to 11. In the school census on 18/01/2018, Upton Cross
Primary School had a pupil capacity of 1200, and had a roll of 993.

+ Hartley Primary School, for pupils aged 3 to 11. In the school census on 18/01/2018 Hartley Primary
School had a pupil capacity-of 960 and had a roll of 903.

» - Drew Primary school, for pupils aged 4 to 11. In the school census on 18/01/2018, Drew Prlmary
School had a pupil capacity of 480 and a roll of 443.

Borough of Southend on Sea: _ :
+ Blenheim Primary School, for pupils aged 3 to 11. In the school census on 18/01/2018, Blenheim
Primary School had a pupil capacity of 676 and a roll of 642. ‘
+ Federation of Greenways Infant and Junior Schools, In the school census on 18/01/2018, Greenways
Infant School had a pupil capacity of 450 and a roll of 425 and Greenways Junlor School had a pupll
capa0|ty of 510and a roll of 505.

Structure, governance and management

Constitution ] . .
The Muiti Academy Trust is a company limited by guarantee with no share capital (registration no. 09148738)
and an exempt charity. The charitable company's Memorandum and Articles of Association are the primary
governing documents of the Academy.

The Multi Academy Trust is a company limited by guarantee with no share capital (registration no. 09148738)
and an exempt charity. The charitable company's Memorandum and Amcles of Association are the primary.
governing documents of the Academy.

The Directors act as the Trustees for the charitable activities of Learning in Harmony Muiti Academy Trust and
are also Directors of the charitable company for the purposes of company law. The charitable company is known
as Learning in Harmony Trust. Details of the Directors who served throughout the period, except as noted, are
included in the Reference and Administrative Details on page 1. ’ ,

The Learning in'Harmony Multi Academy Trust was incorporated on 28 July 2014 and obtained Academy status

for J F Kennedy School and Sheringham Primary School from 1 September 2014, Upton Cross Primary School

from 1 September 2015, Hartley Primary School from the 1 April 2016, Drew Primary School on 1 January 2017,

Blenheim on 1 September 2016 and Greenways Primary School on 1 October 2016. Temple Sutton Primary .
~ School joined the Trust on 1 September 2018. )
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LEARNING IN HARMONY MULTI ACADEMY TRUST

DIRECTORS' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2018

Members' ||ab|htv : :
Each member of the charitable company undertakes to contribute to the assets of the company in the event of it
being wound up while he/she is a member, or within one period after he/she ceases to be a member, such
. amount as may be requ1red not exceedmg £10, for the debts and liabilities contracted before he/she ceases to
be a member.

Principal activities

The principal activity of the Multi Academy Trust is to advance for the public benefit educatlon in the United
Kingdom, in particular, but without prejudice to the generality of the foregoing, by establishing, mamtalnlng,
‘carrying on, managing and developing schools offering a bfoad and balanced curriculum.

Method of recruitment and appointment or election of directors

The members of the Learning in Harmony Multi Academy Trust Board shall comprise the signatories to the
Memorandum until such time as they resign or otherwise cease to be members and any person appointed
under Article 15A, the minimum number shall be not less than 3.

The Articles 6f Association of the Trust were renewed on 12 May 2018. The number of Directors shall be not less
than 3, but shall not be subject to- a maximum. The Academy Trust shall have the following Directors: up to 9
Directors appointed by the members, the Chief Executive Officer may be appointed as a Trustee by the
members. The parental representation at the Trust is through 2 parent governors at each of the Local
Governing Bodies. The Trust may also have any Co-opted Directors, a person who is .appointed to be a Director .
by being co-opted by Directors who have not themselves been so appointed. The Directors may not co-opt an
employee of the. Multi Academy Trust as a Co-opted Director if the number of Directors who are employed by the
Multi Academy Trust would thereby exceed one third of the total number of Directors (mcludmg -the Chief
Executive Officer and Principals).

Each of the persons entitled to appoint members above shall have the right, from time to time by written notice
delivered to the Office, to remove any Member appointed by them and to appoint a replacement member to fill a
vacancy whether resulting from such removal or otherwise. .

.. The term of office for any Director shéll be 4 yeai’s, save that this time limit shall not apply to the Chief Executive.
S'ubject to remaining eligible to be a particular type of Director, Directors may be re-appointed or re-elected.

Policies and procedures adopted for the induction and training of directors :
During the period under review the Directors held 5 meetings. The training and induction prowded for new

Directors will depend on their existing experience, All new Directors will be given a tour of the Trust's Academies
and the chance to meet with staff and students. All relevant Directors are provided with copies of policies,
procedures, minutes, accounts, budgets, plans and other documents that they will need to undertake their role
as Directors. As there are normally only two or three new Directors a period, lnductlon tends to be done
informally and is tailored specifically to the individual. . :
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LEARNING IN HARMONY MULTI ACADEMY TRUST
DIRECTORS" REPORT (CONTINUED)
" FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2018

N

Organisational structure .

The Board of Trustees has delegated responsrblllty for delivering the vision, mission and strategic ObjeCtIVES to
the Chref Executive (CEO), who is also the Accounting Officer for the multi-academy trust. The Board will hold
the CEO to account for the performance of the Trust, including the performance of the academies within the
Trust. The Board of Trustees also decides the level of delegation to the Local Govermng Bodies of the schools
and to the Audit and Finance Committee. The levels of delegatlon are set out in the Board's Scheme of .
Delegation. This will be kept under regular review. . :

" The Local Governlng Bodies are accountable to the Trustees. They are responsible for ensuring that the schools

are working within the vision, mission and policies of the Trust to achieve the strategic priorities and to assure - '

. the educational and financial performance of the schools. The terms of reference for the Local Governing Bodies
_will also be kept under regular review.

The Audit and Finance Committee will. ensure that all the Trust's property and assets are under the control of the
_Trustees, and that measures are in place to prevent losses or misuse, including maintenance of fixed asset.
“registers. The committee will monitor and ensure that the bank accounts, financial systems and financial records

are operated by more than one person and that full and accurate accounting records support the proposed
- Trust's annual accounts. The committee will report to the Trustees, but can refer significant issues directly to
Members where Trustees fa|I to act appropnately The terms of reference for this committee will be kept under
regular review.

To ensure that Trustees have the opportunity to consult, inform and involve Local Governing Bodies at all levels -
of the organisation, a number of-Governance Advisory Groups have been set up. Representatives from all Local
Governing Bodies are invited to these themed meetings, and the view of these groups is sometimes formally
. sought when the Trustees are considering changes to the way that the Trust as a whole operates. :

On 23rd May 2018 the’ Board of Trustees approved the establlshment of a Corporate Leadership Group to
undertake the functions of and replace, the Trust School Standards and Improvement Group.

On 12 May 2018 the Trust held an annual Governance Day to which all governors Trustees and Members were
invited to attend.
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DIRECTORS' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2018

. Arrangements for setting pay and remuneration of key management personnel

The Trust Senior Leadership Team is made up of the Chief Executive Officer the Trust Executive Headteachers,
the Finance Director and the Head of People, Governance, Risk & Compliance The arrangements for setting
their pay and remuneratlon are:

Chief Executive Officer (CEO)
The salary and job description of the Chief Executive Officer is determined annually by a committee of directors.
If part of the costs of the CEQ's salary is met by one of the schools in the trust a representative of the Local -
Governing Body from that school will also form part of the committee. The Chief Executlves salary is based
upon three elements-
"The total pupil numbers within the trust (taklng into account any special arrangements for pupils with
Special Needs)
+ An element recognising the role as ah Executive Head Teacher wrthln the trust
* An element recognising the additional responsibilities identified in the CEO job description
The CEO's salary is also externally benchmarked at least every three years. In autumn 2016 this benchmarking
exercise was carried out by the Trust's solicitors Stone king. _

The Trust has responded to all communication with the Department for Educatlon with regards to the ratlonale
and evidence to support decisions relating to Executive Pay levels.

Executive Head Teachers

The directors of the trust will nominate a number of Head Teachers from within member schools who are able to
demonstrate a history of having an outstanding impact upon Iearmng These Executive Head Teachers will co-
ordinate the work of the Corporate Leadership Group, be responsible for elements of the Trust’s strategic plan
and are likely to lead work in other schools — particularly sponsored academies. Executive Head Teachers will
- have an additional element to their salary as determrned by the committee of directors who oversee the CEO’s
. salary and job description.

Finance Director and the Head of People, Governance Risk & Compliance

The job description and salary of the Finance Director and the Head of People Governance Risk &
Comphance is evaluated and benchmarked regularly by the Trust's external HR advisors.

Trade union facility time

Relevant un/on officials

Number of employees who were relevant union officials . .
during the relevant period 1
Full-time equivalent employee number . . 1.00.

Percentage of time spent on facility time.

Percentage of trme L - . Number of employees -
0% ' , ' ‘ -

1%-50% . : : ' 1
51%-99% - ' ; -
100% . . -
Percentage of pay bill spent on facility time . )

. Total cost of facility time - o 17

- Total pay bill : _ ) 22,916

Percentage of the total pay bill spent on facilty tlme ‘ o . -

Paid trade union activities
Time spent on.paid trade union activities as a percentage of .
total paid. facility time hours . . -
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'\DIRECTORS' REPORT (CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2018

Objectives' and activities
Objects and aims
Vision and Values

. “In the Learning in Harmony Trust we believe that doing .things in harmony means a commitment to working
-collaboratively and effectively using everyone’s strengths to meet a common aim. We do not follow a school-in-

a-box model, and instead work collaboratively at ail levels within and across each school to maximise potential
through continuous challenge and support. And while there is a presumption for partnership within our Trust,
there is also a commltment to schools retalnlng their own |dent|ty ,

Learning in Harmony Trust has four key values:

We Enable Everyone to Succeed

Strong relationships built on a foundation of trust and honesty, coupled with high asplratlons for all our"
learners, enable us to-strive for excellence.
+ Support and challenge is at the heart of what we do and we have a reIentless focus on the best possible
" outcomes for all our Iearners .

We Act with Integrity

« We believe in doing things the right way. .

+ We are not a top down organisation and effective collaboration is ‘at the heart of what we do. Our
schools are not identical and-each has its own unique strengths This approach enables us to continue
our learning journey in a harmonious and rewarding way.

*  We are a Nurturing Community '

+ We know that it is vital to nurture and grow the whole child, regardless of thelr background to provrde all
with an opportunlty to succeed.

+ We strongly believe that learners flourish when they are well looked after thls starts with-our staff
happy and fulfilled staff have the greatest impact upon pupil learning.

We are a Nurturing Community :
*  We know that it is vital to nurture and grow the whole child, regardless of thelr background, to provide all
with an opportunity to succeed.
* We strongly believe that learners flourish when they are well looked after, thrs starts with ‘our staff,
happy and fulfilled staff have the greatest |mpact upon pupil Iearnmg .

We Encourage Innovatron
+ Our approach to professional development is bespoke and enabling, and there are many opportunltles
to learn from others both within and outside of the Trust.
. Because we act with integrity, our innovative approach is always underpinned by the best research. .

We encourage our staff to continue to learn and to take risksvin their practice to support our quest for excellence.
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DIRECTORS' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2018

Much of the focus of the Trust's central resource in 2017/18 was spent on further enhancing back office capacity
to accommodate growth and on ensuring core compliance. In place at the end of that year was:
» A central team comprising a full time CEO, a full time Finance Director , a full time project officer, an
Executive School Business Manager, a Strategic ICT lead, a trainee management accountant and a
Head of People, Governaince, Risk and Compliance.
+ 5 Trust Wide Leaders were appointed during the year; the purpose of these roles is to provide
succession planning for leadership positions and capacity for school improvement in key areas. '
* Outsourced arrangements for HR and Payroll, Premises Management and Core Compliance,
Governance, Health and Safety Management, ICT strategic support for MIS.
+ Improved resources for governors and governance.
» New Trust wide policies for Health & Safety and some HR policies

Central resources support the continued commonallty across the Trust of: .
: » Financial Software
Three Year Budgeting Software
MIS System
Safeguarding Processes, procedures and ICT systems
Health and Safety Management System
Premises Core Compliance Policy, procedure.and ICT systems
Recruitment Processes and ICT systems
Educational Visit Risk assessments and ICT systems
Assessment and Testing systems

3
.
.
3

Central Funding was also targeted at:

School Improvement

- Through a continued partnership with the NAHT Edison Aspire Project the trust has developed a consistent
language of school improvement. There are rigorous processes in place that support peer moderation, support
and challenge. A Corporate Leadership Group was established to monitor individual school performance, and to
ensure that resources and expertise are targeted to individual schools who have the greatest need:
Furthermore the Trust schools continued to embed the use of NFER tests inyears 1, 3,4 and 5to

Inclusion

Since the Trust's formation in 2014 JFK has provided tlmely support, guidance and advice of excellent quality
" for inclusion teams and the support staff who work with some of our most challenging pupils. As well as JFK staff
" going into other schools to advise, Teachers and support staff from across the schools had the opportunity to
spend time at JFK to learn from their nationally recognised practice. In May 2018 JFK was designated as a
Teaching School by the DfE, and this wull be an integral part of ensuring adequate resource is targeted at puplls
with SEND. . A :

- Safeguarding

The Trust now has a standardised approach to safeguardmg across its schools developed through facilitated
sharing of best practice. All schools now use the same cloud based software solution for reporting and tracking
safeguarding concerns. During the academic year a bespoke safeguardmg audit was developed and deployed
within all Trust schools. .

L
3

General Data Protection Regulation Compliance
The Trust invested resources in upskiling members of staff to GDPR Practitioner level and using external
_ consultants to facilitate a project to ensure compliance with core aspects of the new regulations, along with the‘
appointment of an external Data Protectlon Officer.

Recruitment, Retention and Marketing '
. The Trust has worked with a leading education marketing agency to develop a consistent brand image for the
Trust and launch new websites for the family of Trust schools. "A Media and Communications Officer was
- seconded to the central team to facilitate the development of websites and ensuring conS|stency of recruitment
~and retention messages and statutory website compliance. .
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DIRECTORS' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2018

NQT recruitment is centralised with the majority of the 25 2017/18 NQTs having carried out a teaching' practice
at a trust school. In 16/17, 20 NQTs across the Trust worked together on selécted training sessions as well as
taking part in a weekend training event together.

In autumn 2017 a leading Education Recruitment Agency facilitated a visit to Australia of two senior leaders from
the trust and this resulted in the recruntment of 15 teachers across the schools. A foIIow-up visit was held in
September 201 8 )

Staff Wellbeing

We continue to provide all staff on payroll have free access to a varlety of wellbeing- and medical support
provided by Schools Advisory Services and Perkbox. These include counselling services, physiotherapy, serious
illness support, online GP with video consultation, a 24h GP Helplme lifestyle and health screenings, and fast--
tracked access to a range of medical operations.

Staff and Leadersh/p Development i -

The Trust has continued to support development of staff and leadership. In addition to a comprehensive range
of online CPD resources having been made available to all staff working within the Trust leadership programmes
has been provided to both support and teaching staff looking to progress within the Trust. A key focus has been
the development of coaching, with senior leaders from all schools undertaking significant training. The
Assessment Centre process has continued for appointment of leadership positions within the Trust and is used
to enable teachers looking for promotion to undérstand and demonstrate the competencies required. The
apprenticeship levy has enabled the Trust to offer Masters degree programmes to a number of members of
- teaching staff. .

HR and Payrol/ Services

A key focus during 2017/18 was to procure efficient and effective HR .and payroll services. Dunng the year the
procurement process was developed and delivered with agreement reached in July 2018 for the transition to the
new provider to commence in September 2018. .

Publlc benefit

The Directors confirm that they have referred to the guidance contamed in the Chanty Commission's general
guidance on Public Benefit when reviewing the Multi-Academy Trust's aim and objectives and in planning future
“activities. In particular,. the Directors con5|der how planned activities will contnbute to the aims and objectives .
they have set. :

The Admtssrons policy for each school can be found on the website.
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DIRECTORS' REPORT (CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2018

Strategic report
Achievements and performance
Key Stage Two - All Measures (Unvalidated)

National 75.5 %

A

Measure Blenheim | Drew | Greenways | Hartley | Sheringham | Upton
‘ o A : - Cross

Cohort Size 89 59 90 118 117 118
Reading, Writing] ¥ 76.4% A A 66.1% v A 59.8% A 70.4%
(TA), Maths: 79.7% | 47.8% |- .
Achieving (Expected | (EV 77%)
Expected Validated
Standard (EV) 65%)
National 64% : :
Reading, Writing] ¥ 11.2% v AV 68% | Y44%| ANMN1% A 9.6%
(TA), Maths: 1.7% : "
Achieving -Higher
Standard ‘ 4 :
Reading: Overall]l V¥ 1.81 | A 4.03 v -1.34 v 1.81 A 0.03 A 037
Progress Score : ’ 4 .
Reading: A 106.59 A 105.54 v A 104.09 | A 104.36
Average Scaled 105.90 100.80 ’
Score .

| National 105.1. . . 1-
Reading: - v 83.1% A A788% | ¥ A675% | A 759%
Achieving "~ | 86.4% o 56.7% .
Expected (EV71%) | (EV 84%)
Standard
National 75% :
Reading: A326%| A 27.1% A A 26.5% A 25.9%
Achieving a High 27.1% 12.2%
Scaled Score
National 28.1%
Writing: Overallf v 094 | A 3.01 v -3.00 | y/4.42 ¥ 0.81 A 2.06
Progress Score 4
Wiriting (TA):] A 888%| A A 74.6% v A 76.9% ¥ 76.7%
Working at 86.4% ' 73.3% o

.| Expected S .
Standard
National 78.2% .
Writing (TAY] ¥ 14.6% A . A136% | V¥ V¥ 20.5% A 29.3%
Working at 11.9% 12.2% :
Greater  Depth
within Expected

- | Standard

-| National 19.8% ‘
Maths: Overalll 'V 3.40 | A 4.88] A -1.42 Vv 3.86 "A 212 A 122
Progress Score :
Maths: Average| A 107.46 A 104.50 v A 10579 | A 105.20
Scaled Score 106.17 103.03
National 104.4 : 1. '
Maths: Achieving] V¥ 88.8% A A 82.2% v A 78.6% A 80.9%

| Expected -1 93.2% | | 72.2% o
Standard (EV 81%) | (EV 88%)

-10- .
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LEARNING IN HARMONY MULTI'ACADEMY TRUST

.JohnF Kennedy Special thool (JFK)

JFK considers a range of different assessment information that supports personalised progress for all our
students in key stages 1-5 when assessing achievement. Our focus on enriching our curriculum. offer at all
phases, extending accreditation. Students there continue to make excellent progress in all key areas of learning,
especially in communication and through accessing learning opportunities and events in the local community.

o

The exceptlonal lmpact made by the school on its puplls was recognised by the Outstandmg gradlng at ItS‘

Ofsted mspectlon in May 2017.

-Year 2
Expected |Blenheim| Drew | Hartley GréenWays Shering | Upton
. National | . . ’ ham jCross
Reading 75.5 - 83 73 64 73 70 62
expected % : ]
‘Reading at 26 15 14 28 15 16
greater depth % '
Writing expected 70 76 75 59 63 . 65 60
% , i A
Writing at greater| 18 7 0 16 12 20
depth % C ' s .
Maths expected 76.1 78 82 79 67 S 74 70
% .
Maths at greater. 21 16 14 18 14 32
‘ depth % : S :
RWM expected %{ 65.4 71 73 57 53 62 55
RWM at greater 13 7 0 12 6 . 10
depth % : '
Reception : . :
National|Blenheim| Drew | Hartley | Greenways | Shering | Upton
4 ' ham |Cross
GLD (%) 82 75 62 76 ‘|63 70

-
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DIRECTORS' REPORT (CONTINUED) '
- FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2018

Key performance indicators

Strategic Priorities

The Directors have agreed four key strategic priorities for the trust -

A. Al schools in the trust are enabled to reach good or better outcomes.

B. To establish a self-sustaining, system-led, collaborative approach to improvement.
C. To ensure high quality leadership and goyernance at Trust Board, Local Governing Board and academy level.

- D. To ensure that an-effective and efficient business infrastructure operates throughout the trust, supporting
school leaders in achieving excellent outcomes for pupils.

_The success criteria for success by 2020 are
SCA1.  OQutcomes and progress at Foundation Stage, Key Stage 1 and Key Stage 2 are at or above national
levels across the Trust and in each academy.
+ Qutcomes in Y1 phonics are above national levels across the Trust and in each academy.
+ The impact on learning of teaching at all schools within the trust is good or better.
+ Al pupil groups are progressing at least in line with their peers and achievement gaps are narrowing. .
*+ All academies are judged to be good or outstanding in OFSTED inspections.
+ All.academies benefit from Trust co- ordlnated frequent support, monitoring and evaluatlon in line with
the academy’s current needs.
* On-going support and development work |s delivered lncreasmgly by academy colleagues in close
.- consultation with Trust-employed consultants.
» The Trust is engaged in the deployment of training places and there is evidence of recrurtment coming
from'this pool of tralnees

SCC1. The Trust Board is recognrsed as belng high-| performrng and has the full trust of the Reglonal Schools
Commissioner and the academies to lead the -organisation forward.

SCC2. Leadership, including governance, is Judged through our own systems and by inspectors to be good and
outstanding in each academy.

_ SCC3. Local Governing Boards demonstrate clearly through their minutes and monitoring role, that they provide
-appropriate challenge and are clearly focused on raising standards in teaching and learning. ;
SCC4. Substantive leadership. at senior level and well-developed middle leaders, are demonstrating clear
progress in each academy

SCCS5. All on-going safeguarding, health and safety and legal responsibilities continue to be met.

SCD1. The Trust has grown to include at least 10 schools with at least 14 forms of entry in both Newham and
Southend. :

SCD2. Academies express high levels of satisfaction with trust central services :
SCDa3. The staffing structure is clearly developed to manage school lmprovement finance and human resources:
effectively. . :
SCD4. The Trust Board is able to effectively deliver growth and |mproved services across the Trust (see also
Aim 3 above for governance).

SCDS5. Financial forecasts indicate a stable budget posmon going forward with no deficits corporately or in
individual academies.

Going concern :
After making appropriate enquiries, the Board of Directors has a reasonable expectatron that the Multi Academy
Trust has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. For this reason it

continues to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the financial statements. Further details regarding the - -

adoption of the going concern basrs can be found in the Statement of Accountrng Policies.

-12-
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DIRECTORS' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2018

Financial review

Most of the Multi Academy's income is obtained from the Education and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) in the
form of recurrent grants, some of which are restricted to particular purposes. The grants received from the ESFA
during the period ended 31 August 2018 and the assocuated expenditure are shown as restricted funds in the
Statement of Financial Activities.

_ The Multi Academy Trust also receives grants for fixed assets from the ESFA. In accordance with the Charities
Statement of Recommended Practice, 'Accounting and Reporting by Charities' (SORP 2015), such grants are-
shown in the Statement of Financial Activities as restricted income in the fixed asset fund. The restricted fixed
asset fund balance |s reduced by annual deprecratlon charges over the expected useful life of the assets
concerned

During the period ended 31 August. 2618, total expenditure of £35,159k (2017: £27,914k) was met by recurrent
~ grant funding from the ESFA together with other incoming resources. The excess of expenditure over income for
the period (excluding restricted fixed asset funds and transfers to restricted fixed asset funds) was £2,207k
(2017: £60k). . y

At 31 August 2018 the net book value of fixed assets was £74,548k (2017: £74,473k). Movements in tangible
fixed assets are shown in note 12 to the financial statements. The assets were used exclusively for providing
education and the associated support services to the pupils of the Multi Academy Trust.

-The Newham Council Pension Fund and Southend Borough Council fund, in whlch the Trust partlcrpates
showed a deficit of £8,562k (2017 £9,417k) at 31 August 2018.

‘Reserves policy - ‘

The Directors review the reserve -levels of the Multi Academy Trust annually. This review encompasses the
nature of income and expenditure streams, the need to match income with commitments and .the nature of
‘reserves. The Directors have determined that the appropriate level of free reserves should be equivalent to four
weeks' expenditure, approximately £2,704k (2017: £2,529k).

The reason for this is to provide sufficient working capital to cover delays between spending and receipt of

grants and to provide a cushion to deal with unexpected emergencies such as urgent maintenance. The Multi

Academy Trust's current level of free reserves of £2,940k (2017: £2,452k) (total funds less the amount held'in
" fixed assets and restricted funds). . -

|nvestment policy

Under the Memorandum and Articles of Association, the Trust has the power to invest funds not immediately
required for its own purposes, in any way the Directors see fit. The organisation has ‘a positive cash balance to
cover eventualities and unforeseen expenses. The banking facilities are reviewed on a regular basis.

Financial Position

The Multi Academy Trust held fund balances at 31 August 2018 of £68,926k (2017: £68,957k) comprlsmg
£65,986k (2017: £66,105) of restricted funds and £2,940k (2017: £2,452k) of unrestricted general funds. Of the
restricted funds, £74,548k (2017: £74,473k) is represented by tangible fi xed assets. _

" The Pension reserve which is considered part of restricte_d funds was £8,562k (2017: £9,417k) in deficit.

-13-



'

LEARNING IN HARMONY MULTI ACADEMY TRUST

DIRECTORS' REPORT (CONTINUED) -
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2018

Principal risks and uncertainties

-One of the main financial risks which Learning in Harmony Multi Academy Trust is exposed, taking account of
the mitigations in place, relate the risk of an income shortfall due to the likelihood of further government
spending reductions-affecting our general grant. This risk is mitigated by careful management of Trust funds and
a comprehensive budgeting process, which includes scenano planning for different funding modes. Other risks
identified by Directors include:

+ The need to balance both the desire to grow and the capacity to grow;
» The need to recruit further Trustees to the Board following the revisions to the Articles of Association.

A risk arises in relatlon to the defined benefit pension scheme, due to the fact that there is a deficit of £8,562k
(2017: £9,417k).

The Trust maintains a comprehensive Risk Policy and Risk Register, listing all identified risks and specifying
current mitigation and additional mitigation to be put in-place. This is regularly reviewed and updated by the Trust
- Business and Infrastructure Group, and has been _re'gularly approved by Directors.

Financial and risk management objectives and policies

The Directors have assessed the ‘major risks to which the Multi Academy Trust is exposed, in particular those
relating to the specific teaching, provision of facilities and other operational areas of the Trust, and its finances.
The Directors have implemented a number of systems to assess risks that the Trust’'s schools face, especially in
the operational areas (e.g. in relation to teaching, health and safety, bullying and school trips) and in relation to
the control of finance. The Directors are introducing systems, including operational procedures of internal
financial controls in order to minimise risk. Where' significant financial risk still remains they have ensured they
have adequate insurance cover. The Multi Academy Trust has an effective system of internal financial controls.

Plans for future periods
The Multi Academy Trust will continue striving to improve the levels of performance of its students at all levels
and will continue its efforts to ensure its students get jobs or a place in higher education once they leave..

The Trust's schools have a good understahding of its strehgths and areas for development based on rigorous
analysis of data and monitoring of teaching and learning. The Trust's schools also make good use of external
validation to secure its judgement on the quality of provision and subsequent outcomes.

. The Trust plans to expand by adding new Academies which subscribe to the Trust's ethos, aims and objectives
and where the Board consider that mutual benefits will arise.

The Learnlng in Harmony Multi Academy Trust identified ‘four key areas for strategic improvement in the
2017/2020 Strategic plan:- _

+ All schools in the Trust are enabled to reach good or better outcomes

» To establish a self-sustaining, system-led, collaborative approach to school improvement

» To ensure high quality leadershlp and governance at Trust Board, Local Governing Body and Academy
level

» To ensure that an effective and efficient business structure operates throughout the Trust, supporting
school leaders in achieving excellent outcomes for pupils.

Key activities to deliver the desired outcomes above across the Trust are:
« - afocus on the implementation and embedding of responsive teaching '
"« further alignment of effective practice, as school leaders continue to work support and challenge each
other across our schools -
+ the development of a high quality curriculum to be delivered in 2019/20
+ greater alignment of summative assessment processes

The Trust plans to expand by adding new Academies which subscribe to the Trusts ethos aims and objectives
and where the Board consider that mutual benefits will arise. Temple Sutton anary School jomed the Trust
from 1st September 2018.
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LEARNING IN HARMONY MULTI ACADEMY TRUST

DIRECTORS' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2018

Auditor : . |
So far as the Drrectors are aware, there is no relevant ‘information (as defined by Section 418 of the. Compames
‘Act 2006) of which the Learning in Harmony Multi Academy Trusts auditors are unaware, and each Director has
taken .all the steps that they ought to have taken as a Director in order to make them aware of any audlt‘
information and to establish that the Trusts auditors are aware of that mformatlon

The Directors’ report, mcorporatlng a strategic’ report was approved by order of the board of trustees as the
company dlrectors on 10th December 2018 and signed on'its behalf by: ‘
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ALEARNING IN HARMONY MULTI ACADEMY TRUST

GOVERNANCE STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2018

.Scope of responsibility :

As Directors, we acknowledge we have overall responsibility for ensuring that Learning in Harmony Multi
Academy Trust has an effective-and appropriate system of control, financial and otherwise. However, such a
system is designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can
prowde only reasonable and not absolute assurance against material misstatement of loss.

The Board of the Directors has delegated the day-to-day responsibility to the Chief Executive Officer, as
- Accounting Officer, for ensuring financial controls conform .with the requirements of both propriety and good
- financial management and in accordance with the requirements and responsibilities assigned to it in the funding
agreement between Learnlng in Harmony Multi Academy Trust and the Secretary of State for Education. They
Chief Executive Officer is also responsible for reportmg to the Board of Directors any material weaknesses or
breakdowns in internal control. .

Governance

“The information on governance mcluded here supplements that descnbed in the Directors' Report and in the
Statement of Directors'. Responsibilities.. The board of trustees has formally met 5 tlmes during the year.
Attendance dunng the year at meetings of the board of trustees was as follows:

Directors ‘ , Meetings attended Out of possible
H Hinchliffe 3 5
J King .. 1 ‘5

| Mussa (Resigned 17 October 2017) 0 5
P Quinn (Chair to 20 October 2018) 5 -5
D Rochford 5 5
G Wilkie (Accounting Officer) 5 5
N Turvey 3 5

" P Haslett 3 5
J Marriott (Resigned 12 May 2018) 2 4
R Field (Resigned 2 July 2018) 2 3

K Rotheram- (Appointed 17 October 2017) 5 5
~J Brown (Chair from 30 October 2018) (Appointed 17 October 2017) 5 5
K Sewell (Appointed 17 October 2017 and resigned 12 May 2018) 2 3
L Udenwoke (Appointed 20 March 2018) 0 0
R Keller (Appointed 30 October 2018) 0 0

During December 2017 the Trustee Board undertook a governance review which comprised of a SWOT analysis
and skills audit. The review .coincided with work being undertaken to amend and revise the Articles of
Association to enable skills based Trustee membership, as the existing Articles allowed for representational
Trustees from schools. The skills- review and SWOT analysis enabled Trustees to review the effectiveness of
the board and look at the skills that would be required in the future. In July 2018 the Members were invited to
attend the Trustee Board meeting to engage in a dialogue about accountability for the strategic vision. :

The Audit and Finance is a Committee of the main Board of Directors. Its purpose is to monitor budgets and

- challenge variances, to consider personnel issues, and make recommendations for budget approval to the
Trustee Board based on information from the CFO and CEO. The Committee also review the reports produced
by the Internal Auditor and ensure aII issues raised are addressed . This Committee formally met 5 times during
the period. :
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LEARNING IN HARMONY MULTI ACADEMY TRUST

- GOVERNANCE STATEMENT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2018 '

Attendance at meetings in the year was as follows;

Directors ' , , Meetings attended Out of possible
H Hinchliffe 3 5
I Mussa (Resigned 17 October 2017) 1 1
P Quinn (Chair to 20 October 2018) . 0 5
G Wilkie (Accounting Officer) 5 5
K Rotheram (Appointed 17 October 2017) 4 4.

R Keller (Appointed 30 October 2018)

In addition the Local Governor Representatives A Bhatti attended 5 meetmgs out of a possrble 5 and L Cartmell
- attended 4 meetings out of a possrble 5. : .

. Revnew of value for money

As Accounting Officer, the CEO has responsrbnlrty for ensunng that the Multi Academy Trust delivers good value
in the use of public resources. The Accounting Officer understa_nds that value for money refers to the
educational and wider societal outcomes achieved in return for the taxpayer resources received. -

The Accounting Officer considers how the Trust's. use of its resources have provided good value for money
during each academic period, and reports to the Board of Trustees where value for money can be |mproved
rncludlng the use of benchmarklng data where available.

The accounting officer considers how the academy trust’s use of its resources has provided good value for

"money during each academic year, and reports to the board of trustees where value for money can be
improved, including the use of benchmarking data where available. The accounting officer for the academy trust
has delivered |mproved value for money during the year by: -

Developing a transparent ethos of support and challenge across the trust schools.
Working together to share and develop expertise

Where appropriate, having trust-wide service level agreements with external prowders ,
Enhancing financial controls and procedures throughout the trust specifically directed at achlevmg '
value for money, for example by competitive tendering.

« Employing and commissioning high quality advicé to support the self-evaluation of administrative
procedures.

The purpose of the system of internal control

The system of internal control is designed to manage risk to a reasonable level rather than to eliminate all risk of
failure to achieve policies, aims and objectives. It can therefore only provide reasonable and not absolute
assurance of effectiveness. The system of internal control is based on an on-going process designed to identify
and prioritise the risks to the achievement of the Multi Academy Trust's policies, aims and objectives, to evaluate
the likelihood of those risks being realised and the impact should they be realised, and to manage.them
efficiently, effectively and economically. The system of internal control has been in place in the Learning in
Harmony Multi Academy Trust for the year to 31 August 2018 and up to the date of approval of the annual report
and financial statements.

Capacrty to handle risk <

The Board of Directors has reviewed the key risks to which the Multi Academy Trust is exposed together W|th the
operating, financial and compliance controls that have been implemented to mitigate those risks. The Board of
Directors is of the view that there is a formal on-going process for identifying, evaluating and managing the
Trust's significant risks that has been in place for the year to 31 August 2018 and up to the date .of approval of
the annual report and financial statements. This process is regularly reviewed by the Board of Directors.

17 -



'LEARNING IN HARMONY MULTI ACADEMY TRUST

GOVE_RNANCE STATEMENT (CONTINUED)
FOR. THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2018 .

The rlsk and control framework -

The Multi Academy Trust's system of internal financial control is based on a framework of regular management
information and administrative procedures including the segregatlon of duties and a system of delegation and
accountability. In particular, it mcludes

. comprehensnve budgeting and monitoring systems ‘with an annual budget and periodic financial reports
which are reviewed and agreed by the Board of Directors;
. +. clearly defined purchasing (asset purchase or capital investment) guidelines;
+ delegation of authority and segregation of duties;
* - Identification and management of risks.

The Board of Directors has considered the need for a specific internal audit function and has decided not to.
appoint a responsible officer. However, the Directors have appointed Wilkins Kenhedy LLP to complete the
_internal audit function. In addition, in June 2015 the Multi Academy Trust appointed a lead Trust Finance Officer
whose role includes giving advice on financial matters and performing a range of checks on the Multi Academy
Trust's financial systems. In particular, the checks carried out in the current period include: :

Testing of control systems :

Testing of control account / bank reconciliation

Review of policies and procedures and adherence thereon
" Review of governance and training of Governors |

Wilkins Kennedy LLP reports to the Governing body on the operation of the systems of control and on the
discharge of the Governing Body's financial responsibilities. The role is carried out by a separate office at
Wilkins Kennedy LLP with no connection to the audit team, this is to ensure - the reviews are carried out
lndependently : :

The Directors confirm the internal auditor has delivered their schedule of work as planned, and no material
control issues arose as a result of the internal auditor’s work.

. Review of effectiveness :
- As Accounting Officer, the Trust's Chief. Executive Officer has responsibility for reviewing the effectiveness of the
system of internal control: During the period in question, the review has been mformed by:
+ the work of the interim Internal Audit Review; .
+ the financial management and governance self assessment process;
+ the work of the executive managers within the Multi Academy Trust who have responsibility for the
development and maintenance of the internal control framework.

The acéounting officer has been advised of the implications of the result of their review of the system of internal
control .by the Finance and Audit Committee and a plan to address weaknesses and ensure continuous
improvement of the system is in place. : .

G Wilie | - JBrown
Chief Executive Officer . Chair from 30 October 2018
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LEARNING IN HARMONY MULTI ACADEMY TRUST

~ STATEMENT OF REGULARITY, PROPRIETY AND COMPLIANCE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2018

- As accounting officer of Learning in Harmony Multi Academy Trust | have considered my responsibility to notify
" the academy trust board of trustees and the Education & Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) of material irregularity,
impropriety and non-compliance with terms and conditions of all funding received by the academy trust, under
the funding agreement in'place between the academy trust and the Secretary of State for Education. As part of
my consideration | have had due regard to the requirements of the Academies Financial Handbook 2017:

| conﬁrm that | and the academy trust's board of trustees are able to identify any material irregular or improper
use of funds by the academy trust, or material non-compliance with the terms and conditions of funding under
. the academy trust's funding agreement and the Academies Financial Handbook 2017. '

"I confirm thatin-o instances of material irregularity, inipro'priety or funding non-compliance have been discovered
- to-date. If any instances are identified after the date of this statement, these will be notified to the board of
trustees and ESFA.' : ) :

G Wilkie
Accounting Officer

~

011 -10t8
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LEARNING IN HARMONY MULTI ACADEMY TRUST

- STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2018

The directors (who also act as trustees for Learning in Harmony Multi Academy Trust) are responsible for
preparing the Directors' report and the financial statements in accordance with the Annual Accounts Direction
issued by the Education & Skills Funding Agency, United Kingdom Accounting Standards (United. Kingdom
Generally Accepted Accountrng Practice) and applicable law and regulations.
\ .

Company law requrres the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under company law
the directors. must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the charitable company and of its mcommg resources and appllcatron of resources,
including its income and expenditure, for that penod

In preparing these financial statements, the directors are required to:

. select suitable accountlng policies and then apply them consrstently,

» observe the methods and pnncrples in the Charities SORP 2015 and the Academres Accounts D|rect|on
2017 to 2018;

make judgements and accountlng estimates that are reasonable and prudent

state’ whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed, subject to any material departures
" disclosed and explained in the financial statements; and .

prepare the financial statements on the going concern basrs unless it is. mapproprlate to presume that the
charitable company will continue in business.

The directors are responsnble for keeprng adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain

the charitable company's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of

the charitable company and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act

2006. They are also responsiblé for safeguarding the assets of the charitable company and hence for taking
. reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other wregularutres

The direc_tors are responsible for ensuring that in its .conduct and operation the charitable company applies
financial and other controls, which conform with the requirements both of propriety and of good financial
management. They are also responsible for ensuring that grants received from ESFA/DfE have been applied for
the purposes mtended .

The directors are responsrble for the maintenance and mtegnty of the corporate and fi nancial information
included on the charitable company's website. Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the preparatron andl .
dissemination of fi nancral statements may differ from Iegrslatlon in other jurisdictions. '

Approved by order of the board of directors on }0{'1-/20‘% and signed on its behalf by:

rown
Chair
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LEARNING IN HARMONY MULTI ACADEMY TRUST

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF LEARNING IN HARMONY
MUEHACADEMYTRUST

Opinion '

We have audlted the financial statements of Learnmg in Harmony Multi Academy Trust for the year ended 31.
August 2018 which comprise the statement of financial activities, the balance sheet, the statement of cash flows
and the-notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies. The financial
reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting
Standards, including Financial Reporting Standard 102 'The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK
and Republic of Ireland’ (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice), the Charities SORP 2015
and the Academies Accounts Direction 2017 to 2018 issued by the Education & Skills Funding Agency.

In our opinion the financial statements:

- , give a true and fair view of the state of the Academy.Trust's affairs as at 31 August 2018 and of its
incoming resources and application of resources, including its income and expendlture for the year then
ended;

- have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice;

=~ ' have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006; and i

- have been prepared in accordance with the Charities SORP 2015 and the Academies Accounts Direction
2017 to 2018.

Basis for opinion :

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Audltrng (UK) (1ISAs (UK)) and applicable
. law. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the ‘Auditor's responsibilities for the audit
of the financial statements' section of our report. We are independent of the academy trust in accordance with
the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the UK, including the FRC’s
Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropnate to provide a basis for our
opinion. :

. Conclusnons relatmg to going concern
We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to WhICh the ISAs (UK) require us to
report to you where:
-.  the Directors' use of the going concern basis of accountmg in the preparation of the fmanaal statements is
not appropriate; or
- . the directors have not disclosed in the financial statements any ldentlﬁed materlal uncertainties that may
’ ‘cast significant doubt about the academy trust's ability to continue to adopt the going concern basis of
accounting for a period of at least twelve months from the date when the: financial statements are
authorised for issue. .

Other mformatlon .
The other -information comprises the information included in the annual report other than the financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon. The directors are responsible for the other information. Our opinion
on the financial statements does not cover the other information and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly
stated in our report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection’with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in
. doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our

- knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such material

inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are required to determine whether there is a material
misstatement in the financial statements or a material misstatement of the other information. If, based on the
work we have performed, we conclude that there |s a material mlsstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.
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LEARNING IN HARMONY MULTI ACADEMY TRUST

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF LEARNING IN. HARMONY
MULTI ACADEMY TRUST (CONTINUED)

Opinions on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006 .

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

~ - - the information given in the Directors’ report including the incorporated strategic report for the financial

A year for which the financial statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements; and

- the Directors’ report including the mcorporated strategic report have been prepared in accordance with
appllcable legal requirements.

Matters on which we are required to report by exceptlon

In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the academy trust and its environment obtained in the course
of the audit, we have not rdentlf ed material misstatements in the Directors' report, including the incorporated
strateglc report. : '

We have nothlng to. report in respect of the followmg matters in relation to which the Companies Act 2006

requires us to report to you if, in our opinion:

- adequate accountmg records have not been kept, or returns adequate for our audlt have not been recelved
from branches not visited by us; or

- the financial statements are not in agreement with the accountlng records and returns or

- certain disclosures of Directors' remuneration specified by law are not made; or

- we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.

Responsibilities of directors :

As explained more fully in the statement of Directors' responsrbllmes the directors are responsible for the
preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are
free from materlal misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the academy trust's ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the dlrectors either intend to liquidate the charitable company, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so. :

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audlt of the accounts

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from ‘material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an .audit conducted in
accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are ‘considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

A further descrlptlon of our responsubllltles for the audit of the fi nancial statements is located on the Financial
Reporting Council’'s website at: http: //www frc.org. uk/audrtorsresponsrbmtres This description forms part of our
auditor's report. .
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I;EARNING IN HARMONY MU‘LT.I ACADEMY TRUST

lNDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF LEARNING lN HARMONY
MULTI ACADEMY TRUST (CONTINUED) :

Use of our report - :

This report is made solely to the charutable company's members as a body, in accordance wnth Chapter\3 of
Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken sothat we might staté to the charitable
company's members those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor's report and for no other
purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than
the charitable company and the chantable companys members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or
- for the opmnons we have formed..

" Catherine Cooper (Senior Stétutory Auditor)

for and on behalf of Wilkins Kennedy Audit Services '3\\2\‘8
Statutory Auditor 4
Chartered Accountants . - Greytown House
- ' : 221-227 High Street
Orpington
BR6 ONZ
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LEARNING IN HARMONY MULTI ACADEMY TRUST

INDEPENDENT REPORTING ACCOUNTANT'S ASSURANCE REPORT ON
REGULARITY TO LEARNING IN HARMONY MULTI ACADEMY TRUST AND THE
EDUCATION & SKILLS FUNDING AGENCY

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2018

In accordance with the terms of our engagement letter dated 28 January 2015 and further to the requirements of
the Education & Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) as included in the Academies Accounts Direction 2017 to 2018,
we have carried out an engagement to obtain limited assurance about whether the expenditure disbursed and
income received by Learning in Harmony Multi Academy Trust during the period 1 September 2017 to 31 August
2018 have been applied to the purposes identified by Parliament and the financial transactlons conform to the
authorities which govern them.

This report is made solely to Learning in Harmony Multi Academy Trust and ESFA in accordance with the terms
of our engagement letter. Our work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Learning in Harmony
Multi Academy Trust and ESFA those matters we are required to state in a report and for no other purpose. To
the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than Learning in
Harmony Multi Academy Trust and ESFA, for our work, for this. report, or for the conclusion we have formed.

Respectlve responsibilities of Learning in Harmony Muiti Academy Trust's accounting officer and the
reporting accountant :
The accounting officer is responsible, under the requirements of Learnmg in Harmony Muiti Academy Trusts
funding agreement with the Secretary of State for Education dated 27 August 2014 and the Academies Financial
Handbook, extant from 1 September 2017, for ensuring that expenditure -disbursed and income received is
applied for the purposes intended by Parliament and the financial transactions conform to the authorities which
govern them. .

Our responsibilities for this engagement are established 'in the United Kingdom by our profession’s ethical
guidance, and are to obtain limited assurance and report in accordance with our engagement letter and the
requirements of the Academies Accounts Direction 2017 to 2018. We report to you whether anything has come
to our attention in carrying out our work which suggests that in all material respects, expenditure disbursed and
income received during the period 1 September 2017 to 31 August 2018 have not been applied to purposes
intended by Parliament or that the financial transactions do not conform to the authorities which govern them.

Approach
We conducted our engagement in accordance with the Academies Accounts Direction 2017 to 2018 issued by
ESFA. We performed a limited assurance engagement as defined in our engagement letter.

The objective of a limited assurance engagement is to perform such procedures as to obtain information and
explanations in order to provide us with sufficient appropriate evidence to express a negative conclusion on

" regularity.

A limited assurance engagement is more limited in scope than a reasonable assurance engagement and
consequently does not enable us to obtain assurance that we would become aware of all significant matters that
might be identified in a reasonable assurance engagement. Accordingly, we do not express a positive opinion.

Our engagement includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the regularlty and propriety of the
academy trust's income and expenditure.

Our work included identification and assessment of the design and operational effectiveness of the controls,
policies and procedures that have been implemented to ensure compliance with the framework of authorities
including high level financial control areas and areas assessed of presenting a higher risk of impropriety. We
undertook detailed testing, based on our assessment of risk of material irregularity, where such controls, policies
and procedures apply to classes of transactions. This work was: integrated with our audit on the financial
statements to the extent evidence from the conduct of that audit supports the regularity conclusion as well as
addltlonal testing based on our assessment of risk of material |rregular|ty
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LEARNING IN HARMONY MULTI ACADEMY TRUST

- INDEPENDENT REPORTING ACCOUNTANT S ASSURANCE REPORT ON.
- REGULARITY TO LEARNING IN HARMONY MULTI ACADEMY TRUST AND THE
. EDUCATION & SKILLS FUNDING AGENCY (CONTINUED) '

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2018

‘Conclusion

In the course of our work, nothing has come to our attention which suggests that in all material respects the
expenditure disbursed and income received during the period 1 September 2017 to 31 August 2018 has not
been applied to purposes intended by Parliament and the fi nanmal transactions do not conform to the authorities

- which govern them

M)L(n MA’MWW

Reporting Accountant
Wilkins Kennedy Audit Serwces
‘Greytown House

221-227 High Street .
Orpington -

BR6 ONZ

Dated: ..\ \L\ ........
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- LEARNING IN HARMONY'MULTI ACADEMY TRUST
| STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES

INCLUDING INCOME AND EXPENDITURE ACCOUNT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2018

\

Unrestricted - Restricted funds: Total. " Total

‘Funds General Fixed asset 2018 - 2017
Notes £000 £'000 . £'000 £'000 £'000
Income and endowments from: o : o ‘
Donations and.capital grants 3 190 ‘- . 817 1,007 717
Donations - transfer from local . : . :
authority on conversion . C } - - - _ - 28,384
Charitable activities: A _ -
- Funding for educational operations ~ 4- . E 30,487 . .- - 30487 = 28547
Other trading actlvmes 5 - 1,302 - - . 1,302 1,060
. Investments 6 .9 - - 9 2
Total : 1,501 30,487 817 32,805 58710,
Expe’nditﬁre on:
_ Charitable activities: ' ‘ »
- Educational operations ' 9 - 891 33,304 964 35,159 30,771
Total . 7. - 891 33,304 . 964 35159 . 30,771
Net income/(expenditure) ‘ .- 810 (2,817) ' (147) (2,354) . 27,939
Transfers between funds 19 (122) (100) 222 ] ]
'Other recognised gains/(losses)

Actuarial gains on defined benef t » . _ :
‘pension schemes . 21 - 2,323, - 2,323 © 2,700
Net movement in funds- 488 . (594) ' 75 (31) 30,639
Reconciliation of funds : : 4 :

Total funds brought forward : 2,452 (7,968) 74473 68,957 38,318
Total funds carried forward 2,940 (8;562) 74,548 68,926 o 68,957
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'LEARNING IN HARMONY: MULTI ACADEMY TRUST

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES (CONTINUED)
_ INCLUDING INCOME AND EXPENDITURE ACCOUNT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2018

Comparétive year inférmation - Ny Unreétficted Restricted funds: - Total

‘Year ended 31 August 2017 = v Funds General Fixedasset 2017
: : Notes .£"000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Income and endowments from: ' : - ,
.Donations and capital grants ’ . 3 : 165 27 535 ’ 77
Donations - transfer from local authority on o C _
“conversion S : C _ 1,613  (4,759) 31,630 28,384
Charitable activities: = ‘ : .
- Funding for educational operations 4 g - 28,547 - 28,547
Other trading activities ' . 5 - 1,060 - - - 1,060
Investments - N T : 2 .- - 2
Total . - _ ' o 2,730. 23,815 32,165 - 58,710
Expenditure on:
Charitable activities: , : : -

" - Educational operations " 9 : 503 29,348 920 30,771
Total - : : ' , 7 503 29,348 920 30,771
Netincome/(expenditure) C 2227, (5533) 31,245 27,939
Transfers between:funds A ' A 19 ‘ (197) . 52:1 , (327) - -
Other recognised gains/(losses)

Actuarial gains on defined benefit pension . .
schemes , : o 21 : - 2,700 - . 2,700

" Net movement in funds . L 2@% : (2,309) 30,918. 30,639
Reconciliation of funds : ' _ o .
To_tal funds brought forward . _ 422 .(5,659) 43,555 38,318
Total funds carried forward : | 2452 (7.968) 74473 68,957
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LEARNING IN HARMONY MULTI ACADEMY TRUST

'BALANCE SHEET

“AS AT 31 AUGUST 2018
‘ - £ 2018 zo17
o Notes « £000 . £'000. - £'000 £'000
Fixed assets . - _ o _
Tangible assets 4 14 . © 74,548 74,473
Current assets : o . -
Debtors ' _ .15 . 1838 . . . 2425
Cash at bank and in hand 5113 : . . 3,875
6,749 o . 6,300
. Current liabilities o :
. Creditors: amounts falling due wnthm one : o :
" year ‘ 17 (3,809) - . - (2,399)
‘Net current assets A B . ‘ i 2,040 S 3,901
‘Net assets excluding pension liability - T 77,488 78,374 -
Deﬁﬁed benefit pension scheme liability . 21 , ‘ _ (8,562) ‘ ' (9;417) .
Netassets o T e8a26 A 68,957
" Funds of'fhe academy trust: :
Restricted funds = - 19 - ) o , .
- Fixed asset funds S 74,548 o | 74,473
* - Restricted income funds . o S T 1,449
- Pension reserve _ B - . (8,562) ' - (9,417)
Total restricted funds | o 65986 66505
Unrestrieted income funds 19 - . ’ Co 2,940 : o 2,452
Total funds S SR c 68926 . - 68,957

~ The financial statements on pages 26 ‘to 51 were approved by the directors and authonsed for issue
on ..i.*?.f!?..l..\ ......... and are signed on their behalf by: :

J Brown

. Chair v _
Company Number 09148738
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,LEARNING IN HARMONY MULTI ACADEMY TRUST

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2018

Notes

' Cash flows from operating activities
Net cash provided by (used in) operating
activities - - _ 22
Cash funds transferred on conversion

Cash flows from investing activities.
Dividends, interest and rents from investments
Capital grants from DfE and ESFA

Capital funding from sponsors and others
Payments to acquire tangible fixed assets .

Change in.cash and cash equlvalents in the
, reporting perlod

Cash and cash equivalents at 1 September 2017
Cash-and cash equivalents at 31 August 2018
Relating to:

Bank and cash balances
Short term deposits

2018

£'000

827

(10) .
(1,039)

£'000 °

1,451

1,451

2017

£'000

£'000

(336)
1,513

1,177

329

1,506

2369

3,875 -

3,875

.29



LEARNING IN HARMONY MULTI ACADEMY TRUST

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS r
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2018

11

1.2

1.3

Accounting policies.

Learning in Harmony Multi Academy‘Trust is a charitable company. The address of its principal place of
business is given on page 1 and the nature of its operations are set out in the Directors' report. '

A summary of the prmcrpal accountmg policies adopted (whrch have been applied consrstently, except

. where noted) judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty, is set out below

Basis of preparation :

The financial statements of the academy trust which is a public benefit entrty under FRS 102, have been’
prepared under the hrstoncal ‘cost ‘convention in accordance with the Financial Reporting Standard
Applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland .(FRS 102), the Accounting and Réporting by Charities:
Statement of Recommended Practice applicable to charities preparing their financial statements in
accordance with the Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland (FRS 102)

(Charities SORP (FRS 102)), the Academies Accounts Direction 2017 to 2018 issued by ESFA, the
- Charities Act 2011 and the Companies Act 2006. '

Learning in Harmony Multi Academy Trust meets the definition of a public benefit entity under FRS 102.

Going concern :
The directors assess whether the use of going concern is appropriate, ie whether there are any materlal
uncertainties related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the charitable
company to.continue as a going concern. The directors make this assessment in respect of a period of at
least one year from the date of authorisation for issue of the financial statements and have concluded that
the academy trust has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future
and there are no material uncertainties about the academy. trust’s ability to continue as a going concern.
Thus they continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting in preparing the financial statements:

Income
All incoming resources are recognised when the academy trust has entltlement to the funds, the recelpt is
probable and the amount can be measured reliably.

" Grants

Grants are included in the statement of i nancral activities on a recervable basis. The balance of income
received for specific purposes but not expended during the period is shown in the relevant funds on the
balance sheet. Where income is received in advance of meeting any performance-related conditions there
is not unconditional entitlement to the income and its recognition is deferred and included in creditors as
deferred income until the performance-related conditions are met. Where entitlement occurs before income
is received, the income. is accrued.

General Annual Grant is recognised in full in the statement of financial activities in the period for which it is
receivable, and any abatement in respect of the penod is deducted from income and recognised as a

~ liability.

Capital grants are recognised in full when there is an unconditional entittement to the grant. Unspent
amounts of capital grants are reflected in the balance sheet in the restricted fixed -asset fund. Capital
grants are recognised when there is entitlement and are not deferred over the life of the asset on WhICh
they are experided. :

"Donations
‘Donations are recogmsed on a receivable basis (where there are no performance related condltrons)

where the receipt is probable and the amount can be reliably measured.
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LEARNING IN HARMONY MULTI ACA_DEMY‘TRUST

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2018

14

Accounting policies - o : .. ' (Continued)

Other income
Other income, including. the hire of facilities, is recognised in the penod it is receivable and to the extent
the academy trust has provided the goods or services. .

Donated goods, facilities and services

The value of donated services and gifts in. kind provided to the academy trust are recogniséd at thelr open
market value in.the period in which they are receivable as incoming resources, where the benefit to the
academy trust can be reliably measured. An equivalent amount is included as expenditure under the
relevant heading in the statement of financial activities, except where the gift in kind was a fixed asset in
which case the amount is included in the appropriate fixed asset category and depremated over the useful
economic life in accordance with the academy trust's policies.

Interest receivable

_Interest receivable is included within the statement. of financial activities on a recelvable basis.

Donated fixed assets

Donated fixed assets. are measured at falr value unless it is impractical to measure thls reliably, in which
case the cost of the item to the donor is used. The gain is recognised as income from donations and-a
corresponding amount is included in the appropriate fixed asset category and depreciated over the useful

‘economic life in accordance with the academy trust's accounting policies.

Expendrture .
Expenditure is recognlsed once there is a legal or constructlve obligation to transfer economic benefit to a
third party, it is probable that a transfer of economic benefits will be requrred in settlement, and the amount

- of the obllgatlon can be measured reliably. .

Expenditure is 'classiﬁed by activity. The costs of each activity are made up of the total of direct costs and
shared- costs, -including support-costs involved in undertaking each’ activity. Direct costs attributable to a
single activity are allocated directly to that activity. Shared costs which contribute to more than one activity

_and support costs which are not attributable to a single activity are apportioned between those activities on

a basis consistent with the use of resources. Central staff costs are allocated on the basis of time spent
and deprematron charges are allocated on the portaon of the asset S use.

AI! resources expended are inclusive of irrecoverable VAT.

Expenditure on raising funds

This includes all expenditure incurred by ‘the academy trust to raise funds for its chantable purposes and
includes costs of all fundraising actrvrtles events and non-charitable tradlng

" Charitable actrvmes

These are costs incurred-on the academy trust's educatronal operations, including support costs and costs
relatmg to the governance of the academy trust apportioned to charitable activities. A

Governance costs

These include the costs attributable to the academy trust's comphance wnth constitutional and statutory.
requirements, including audit, strategic management, Directors' meetings and reimbursed expenses.
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LEARNING IN HARMONY MULTI ACADEMY TRUST

' NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2018

1.5

1.6

1.7

1.8

Accounting policies . . o ‘ IR (Continued)

Tangible fixed assets and depreciation

‘Assets costing £1,000 or more are capitalised as tangible fixed assets and are carried at cost, net of

depreciation and any provision for impairment.

Where tangible fixed assets have been acquired with the aid of specific grants, either from the government
or. from the private sector, they are.included in the balance sheet at cost and depreciated over their
expected useful economic life. The related grants are credited to a restricted fixed asset fund in the
statement of financial activities and carried forward in the balance sheet. Depreciation on such assets is
charged to the restricted fixed asset fund in the statement of financial activities so as to reduce the fund
over the useful economic life of the related asset on a basis consistent with the academy trust's
depreciation policy. Where tangible fixed assets have been acquired with unrestricted funds the cost is

- transferred to the restricted fixed asset fund, depreciation on such assets is charged to the restrlcted fixed

asset fund.

The Properties at John F Kennedy School, Sheringam anary School and Upton Cross Primary School
have been included at the valuation provuded by the EFA when completlng their desktop valuation.

The Hartey Primary School land and bmldlngs have been included at the valuatlon provided by the London
Borough of Newham as at 31 March 2016.

The propértnes at Blenheim Primary School, Drew Primary School and Thorpe Greenways Infants and
Junior School have been included at the valuations provided by Stanley Hicks Chartered Surveyors as at

" October 2017.

The trust has a 125 year lease from the date of conversnon of each school for the use of the land and
bun|d|ngs with the Iocal authority. .

Depreciation is provided on all tangible fixed assets other than freehold land, at rates calculated to write off
the cost of each asset on a straight-line basis over its expected useful life, as follows:

Land and buildings - "+ buildings, Sb years. Land, nil

Computer equipment 3 years

Fixtures, fittings & equipment : ~ 3years

A review for impairment of a fixed asset is carried out if events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the carrying value of any fixed asset may not be recoverable. Shortfalls between the carrying value of fixed
assets and their recoverable amounts are recognlsed as |mpa|rments Impalrment losses are recognised |n
the statement of financial activities. :

Liabilities -

Liabilities are recognised when there is an obllgatlon at the balance sheet date as a result of a past event,
it is probable that a transfer of economic benefit will be required in settlement, and the amount of the
settlement can be estimated reliably. Liabilities are recognised at the amount that the academy trust
anticipates it will pay to settle the debt or the-amount it has received as advanced payments for the goods .
of services it must provude . :

Leasing commitments

Rentals payable under operatmg leases are charged agalnst income on a stralght line basis over the
period of the lease. .

Financial instruments

The academy trust only ‘holds basic financial instruments as defined in FRS 102. The financial assets and
financial liabilities of the academy trust and their measurement basis are as follows.
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LEARNING IN HARMONY MULTI ACADEMY TRUST

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2018

1.9

1.10

Accounting policies _ (Continued)

Financial assets
Trade and other debtors are basic financial instruments and are debt mstruments measured at amortised
cost. Prepayments are not financial |nstruments

Cash at bank is classified as a basic financial instrument and is measured at face value.

"Financial liabilities

Trade creditors, accruals and other credltors are financial instruments, and are measured at amortised
cost. Taxation and soc1al securlty are not included in the financial instruments disclosure defi n|t|on

Deferred income is not deemed to be a ﬂnancral Ilabrlrty, as the cash settlement has already taken place
and there is an obligation to deliver services rather than cash or another financial instrument. ’

Taxation

-The academy trust is consrdered to pass the tests set out in Paragraph 1 Schedule 6 of the Flnance Act

2010 and therefore it meets the definition of a charitable company for UK corporation tax purposes.
Accordingly, the academy trust is potentially exempt from taxation in respect of income or capital gains
received within categories covered by chapter 3 part 11 of the Corporation Tax Act 2010 or Section 256 of -
the Taxation of Chargeable Gains Act 1992, to the extent that such income or gains are applled excluswely_
to chantable purposes. .

Pensions benefits

Retirement benefits to employees of the academy trust are provided by the Teachers' Pension Scheme
('TPS') and the Local Government Pension Scheme ('LGPS'). These are defined benefit schemes and the
assets are held separately from those of the academy trust.

The TPS is an unfunded scheme and contrlbutrons are calculated so as to spread the cost of pensions
over employees’ working lives with the academy trust in such a way that the pension cost is a substantially
level percentage of current and future pensionable payroll. The contributions are determined by the
Government Actuary on the basis of quadrennial valuations using a projected unit method. The TPS is an
unfunded multi-employer scheme with no underlying assets to assign between employers. Consequently,
the TPS is treated as a defined contribution scheme for accounting purposes and the contributions are -
recognised in the period'to WhICh they relate.. -

The LGPS is a funded multi-employer scheme .and the assets are held‘ separately from those of the
academy trust in separate trustee administered funds. Pension scheme assets are measured at fair value
and liabilities are measured on an actuarial basis using the projected unit credit method and discounted at
a rate equivalent to the current rate of return on a high quality corporate bond of equivalent term and
currency to the liabilities. The actuarial valuations are obtained at least triennially and are updated at each
balance sheet date. The amounts charged to operating surplus are the current service costs and the costs
of scheme introductions, benefit changes, settiements and curtailments. They are included as part of staff
costs as incurred. Net interest on the net defined benefit liability/asset is also recognised in the statement
of financial activities and comprises the interest cost on the defined benefit obligation and interest income
on the scheme assets, calculated by multiplying the fair value of the scheme assets at the beginning of the

. period by the rate used to discount the benefit obligations. The difference between the interest income on

1.1

the scheme assets and the actual return on the scheme assets is recognised in other recognrsed gains
and losses. -

Fund accountlng
Unrestricted income funds represent those resources which may be used towards meeting any of the
charitable objects of the academy trust at the dlscretlon of the directors.
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2018

. 112

Accounting policies - ‘ (Continued)

Restricted fixed asset funds are resources which are to be applied to specific capital purposes imposed by
[the Education Funding Agency where the asset acquired or created is held for a speciﬁc purpose.. .

Restricted general funds comprise all other restricted funds received and include grants from the
Educatron Funding Agency

Agency arrangements

The academy trust acts as an agent in distributing 16-19 bursary funds from ESFA. Payments received
from ESFA and subsequent. disbursements to students ‘are excluded from the statement of financial
activities as the trust does not have control over the charitable application of the funds. The trust can use
up to 5% of the allocation towards its own administration costs and this is recognised in the statement of
financial activities. The funds received and paid and any balances held are disclosed in note 26.

: Crrtical accdunting estimates and areas of judgement

Accounting estimates and jUdgerhents are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience
and other factors, including expectatlons of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances. :

Critical accountlnq estimates and assumptions :

The academy trust makes estimates and assumptions concernrng the future. The resultmg accounting
estimates and assumptions will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below

The present value of the Local Government Pension Scheme defined benefit liability depends on a number
of factors that are determined on an actuarial basis using a variety of assumptions. The assumptions used

" in determining the net cost or income for pensions include the discount rate. Any changes in these

‘assumptions, which are disclosed in note 21, will impact the carrying amount of the pension liability.

Furthermore a roll forward approach which projects results from the latest full actuarial valuation performed -
at 31 March 2016 has been used by the actuary in valuing the pensions liability at 31 August 2018. Any
differences between the figures derived from the roll forward approach and a full actuarial valuation would
impact on the carrying amount of the pension Ilablllty 4 :

,

Critical areas of judgement

Useful economic lives of tangible assets :

The annual depreciation charge for tangible assets is sensitive to changes in the ‘estimated useful
economic lives and residual values of the assets. The useful economic lives and residual values are re-
assessed annually. They are amended when necessary to reflect current estimates, based on technologlcal
advancement, future investments, economic utilisation and the physical condition of the assets. See note
13 for the carrying amount of the property plant and equipment, and note 1 5 for the useful economic lives
for each class of assets. .

Bad debts ' '
Debtors are regularly reviewed for recoverability, any debts which in the opinion of management are not

- recoverable are provided for as a specific bad debt.

There are no key assumptlons c':oncernlng the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the
reporting date that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying' amounts of

- assets and liabilities within the next financial year.
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR'ENDED 31 AUGUST 2_018

e

3

Donations and capital grants :
' ‘ . Unrestricted

funds

"£'000

_ Capital grants o S
Other donations 190

190

"Funding for the acédemy trust's educational operations

Unrestricted

funds
£'000
DfE / ESFA grants _
General annual grant (GAG) _—
Start up grants ) -
-Other DfE / ESFA grants -
Other government grants .
Local authority grants -
Other government grants -
Other funds: ' _
Other i incoming resources ’ -
‘Total funding' -
i S R
Other trading activiiies _

‘ o Unrestricted
funds
£000

Hire of facilities . R |
Catering income B o . 189
- Otherincome v ) v ~ 1,051

1,302

Restricted
funds
£'000

817

817

Restricted
funds .

£'000

21,455

2,476

23,931

Restricted
- funds

£'000.

Total.

2018
£'000

Total

2018

£'000
21,455

2,476

23,931

© Total A
. 2018 -

£'000

132

1,061 -

1,302

Total
2017
£000

535

717

" Total

2017 .

~ £'000

19,887

2,381

Total
2017

. £'000

116
11

1,060
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (CONTINUED)
'FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2018

6  Investmentincome’.

Short term deposits

7 Expenditure

Unrestricted
" funds

£'000

9

Staff costs Premises

£'000

Academy's educatlonal operatlons

- Direct costs v 21,731
- Allocated support costs : 4,900 .

26,631

Net income/(expenditure) for the year includes:.

" ‘Fees payable to auditor for:
- Audit
.- Other services
Operating lease rentals . -
“ Depreciation of tangible fixed assets
Net interest on defined benefit pension. liability

8 °~ Central services

£'000 .

3,405

4,222

Restricted

funds

£'000 .

Non Pay Expenditure

Other
£'000

1,160
3,146 -

4,306

Total

2018
£'000

©

Total
2018
£'000

23,708
11,451

35,159

2018
£'000

25

10
964
231

N

The academy trust has prowded the followung central services to |ts academies dunng the year:

human resources;
financial services;.
legal services;
catering costs
insurance
recruitment

The acadenﬁy trust charges for these services on the following basis:

* 6:25% (2016: 6%) of GAG School Budget Share |

ﬁ'otal

2017

£'000

N

Total
2017
£'000

21,173
9,598 -

30,771

2017.
£'000
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8  Central services

The amounts charged during the year were as follows:

Hartley Primary School

Upton Cross Primary

John F Kennedy School

Sheringham Primary School

Learning in Harmony Trust

Blenheim Primary School ~
Drew Primary School |

Greenways Primary School

9 Charitable activities

Unrestricted

" Direct costs
Educational operations
Support costs

. Educational operations

-

Analysis of support costs
Support staff costs
Depreciation

. Technology costs
Premises costs
Other support costs
Governance costs

funds

£'000-

176

715 -

. 891

Restricted

funds

£'000 :

23,532

10,736

34,268

.. (Continued)

2018
£'000

273
314
247

257

Totall .
2018

£'000

123,708

" 11,451

35159 -

2018
£'000

4,900

147
280

3,258
2,782

84

11,451

2017
£°000

. 254
236
240
249

Total
2017

" £000

21,173

9,598

- 30,771

2017

£000

4388
150,

429
2,174

2,399

9,598
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10 Governance costs n.
' Total " Total

All from restricted funds: , ‘ o ' 2018 . 2017
S - £'000 £'000
Amounts included in support costs
Legal and professional fees - . : ' 48 27
. Auditor's remuneration o ’ o

- Audit of financial statements ' o - 25 - 24

- Other audit costs ’ o ‘ _ oM 7

84 58

11 Staff costs: :

2018 2017

£'000 £'000

Wages and salaries - . , ' o o 18,398 16,837

- Social security costs ' » 1714 . 1,556

.Operating costs of defined benef t pension schemes o - 4,018 3,258

Apprenticeship levy c - : _ - 31

Staff costs : - : - 24,130 21,682

Supply staff costs . : ' . 2,074 1,636

Staff restructuring costs ' o , 26 65

Staff development and other staff costs * - : , .40 - 215
Total staff expenditure - o | 26,631 " 23,508

Staff numbers
© The average number of persons by headcount employed by the academy trust during the year was as

follows:
2018 - 2017
Number Number
Teachers ‘ : : o o 248 - 230
Administration and support . 494 484 .
' Management » , ' : A : 4 48 48
790 762
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1

- 12

. £100,001 - £110,000
" £110,001 - £120,000

Staff costs - _ ' ' " ~ (Continued)

Higher paid staff :

The number of employees whose employee benef ts (excludlng employer national insurance and pensron

costs) exceeded £60,000 was: ‘
: - 2018 2017

Number Number

£60,000- £70,000 - S 1
£70,001- £80,000 : h

£80,001 - £90,000

£90,001 - £100,000

AN whO®

£120,001 - £130,000
£130,001- £140,000 .

N
” PSS 0N

Key management personnel . .

The key management personnel of the academy trust comprise the drrectors and the senior management
team as listed on page 1. The total amount of employee benefits (including employer pension contributions
and national insurance) received by key management personnel for their services to the academy -trust
was £808k (2017: £506k). :

During the year the trust paid £26k (2017: £65k) to three member.of staff for a non contractual compromise

" agreement The individual amounts were £12k, £8k and £5k.

Directors’ remuneration and expenses

One or more dlrectors has been paid remuneration or has received other benefits from an employment wrth
the academy trust. The CEO and other staff directors only receive remuneration in respect of services. they
provide undertaking the roles of CEO and staff members under their contracts of employment, and not in ‘
respect of their services as directors. Other directors did not receive any payments, other than expenses,
from the academy trust in respect of their role as drrectors

The value of Directors" remuneration and other beneﬁts was as follows:

G Wilkie (CEOY):
« Remuneration £130 000 - £135 000 (2017: £125, 000 - £130 000) '
«. Employer's pension contrlbutuons £20,000.- £25,000 (2017 £20,000 - £25 ,000)

D Rochford (John F Kennedy School Executlve Headteacher)
* Remuneration £55,000 - £60,000 (2017 £90,000 - £95 OOO)
+ Employer's pension contributions £5,000 - £10,000 (2017: £15,000 - £20,000)

N Turvey (Upton Cross Primary School Headteacher)

+ Remuneration £100,000 - £105,000 (2017: £105,000 - £110 ,000)
« Employer's pension contributions £15,000 - £20,000 (2017: £15,000 - £20,000)

Dunng the year, curriculum consumables and travel costs of £2,410 (2017: £2 562) were relmbursed to
three directors (2017: three dlrectors) :

Other-related party transactions involving the directors are set out within the related parties note.
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13

14

: Directors and officers insurance

John F Kennedy Special School ’ .
The academy trust has opted into the Department of Educatlon s risk protectlon arrangement (RPA), an
alternative to insurance where UK government funds cover losses that arise. This scheme protects trustees
and officers from claims arising from negligent acts, errors or -omissions occurring whilst on academy’
business, and provides cover up to £10,000,000. It is not possible to quantify the trustees and officers

' mdemmty element from the overall cost of the RPA scheme.

' Shenngham Primary School, Upton Cross Primary School ,'Hartley Primary School. Blenheim

Primary School. Drew Primary School and The Federation of Greenways Schools.
In accordance with normal commercial practice, Sheringham Primary- School, Upton Cross Primary
School , Hartley Primary School. Blenheim Primary School. Drew Primary School and The Federation of

. Greenways Schools. have purchased insurance to protect directors and officers from claims arising from

negligent acts, errors or omissions occurring whilst on academy trust business. The insurance provides -
cover up to £1,000,000 on any one claim and the cost for the.year ended 31 August 2018 and 31 August
2017 cannot be ascertained-as it is.included in the general insurance premium. .

i

Tangible fixed assets E : .
: Land and Computer Fixtures, Total

- buildings equipment fittings &
' equipment
£000 - £'000 £'000 £'000
Cost ' : o o , .
At 1 September 2017 . ' - . 75,686 306 - 261 76,253
Additions : S - 692 185 162 - 1,039
. At31August2018 = - . ' 176,378 491 423 77,292
Depreciation A - A ‘ '
At 1 September 2017 BV . 1,461 224 .95 . 1,780
Charge for the year ‘L 817 67 80 - 964
At 31 August 2018 o : 2,278 291 - 175 . 2,744
Net book value , . _ ' o .
"At 31 August 2018 ) ' 74,100 200 248 ) 74,548
© At31August2017 . . - 74225 - 82 166 . 74,473

Land and buuldmg additions in the year mcluded new bunldlng works at Drew Prlmary -School and
Shenngham Primary School - .

Included in land and buildings is land valued at £34,868k (2016: £14,833k) which is not depreciated.

e
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15

- 16

17

18

Debtors - o | | 2018 2017
' . ' ' ' ) £'000 . £'000
Trade debtors ’ o - R 147 82
VAT recoverable - A o 4 ' _ - 895 - 833
Other debtors L _ R 27 993
Prepayments and accrued income ' L ' : ' 567 . _ 517
1,636 . 2425
_Current asset investments
Included in cash at bank is £1,000k (2017: £nil) held in short term deposit accounts.
Creditors: amounts falling due within one year S : - 2018 : 2017
: - - £000. £'000
Trade creditors . | - L 1576 024
Other taxation and social security : ' R 474 T 436
Other creditors . ) . - : : B 372 389
Accruals and deferred income , . . - 1,387 - 650
0 3,809 2,399
Deferred income : . - . 2018 2017
, - - ' - £'000 - £'000
Deferred income is included within: , ) , )
~ Creditors due within one year _ o : - - 1,249 505"
Deferred income at 1 September 2017 ~ .~ . o 505. 484
Released-from previous years ' ‘ ' - (805) (484)
Resources deferred in the year o _ B : - 1,249 505
Deferred income at 31 August 2018 = - _— - 1,249 505

At the balance sheet date the academy trust was holding funds received .in advance for universal infant
free school meals, growth funding, early years funding, SEN funding ‘and rates relief relating to 2018/19.
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19

Funds

Balance at Gains, - Balance at
1 September . ' T losses and 31 August
2017 . Income = Expenditure transfers . 2018
. £'000 £'000 £000. - £'000 £'000
Restricted general funds o ' o _
General Annual Grant (GAG) 1424 21,455 (22,779) (100) -
- Start up grants - 25 . - - (25) - v -
Other DfE / ESFA grants . : - 2,476 (2,476) A - : '
Other government grants - s 6,556 (6,556) - -
" Pension reserve (9.417) . (1,468) 2,323 - (8,562)
(7,968) 30,487 - (33,304) 2,223 (8,562)
Restricted fixed asset funds , _ S
DfE group capital grants - 817 To- (817) : -
General fixed assets . 74,473 . - (964) 1,039 - 74,548 -
74,473 817 964) = 222 74,548
Total restricted funds 66,505 31,304 (34,268) 2,445 65,986
Unrestricted funds . 4 . . : . :
General funds 2,452 1,501 (891) (122) ‘ 2,940
* Total funds S ' 68,957 A 32,805 (35,159) ' 2,323 68,926

The specific purposes for which the funds are to be applied are as follows.
General Annual Grant"lncome ‘received from the ESFA to cover the normal running costs of the Academy

Under the funding agreement with the Secretary of State, the academy was not subject to a limit on the

.amount of GAG that it could carry forward at 31 August 2018.

Start up grants: This includes the ESFA start up grant.

Other DFE/ESFA grants: Th|s includes the pupil premlum rates relief, insurance, UIFSM and sports fundlng

" grant.

Other governrhent grants: This includes SEN funding, good to great grant, reading one to one tuition: grant
growth fund, educational guarantee contribution and additional pupil premlum recerved from the Local
Authority. !

Other restricted funds: This includes the Iottery ‘grant-and restricted donations.

DfE/ESFA capital grants: Thns mcludes Devolved Formula Capltal and Condition |mprovement grants.

The transfer of funds relate to the purchase of f xed assets during the period and the excess of ‘expenditure
over income.
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19 Funds

Comparative information in respect of the preceding period is as follows:

Balance at
1 September
2016
‘ . . , £000
Restricted general funds A
General Annual Grant (GAG). . .233
Start up grants ' -
- Other DfE / ESFA grants . 356
Other government grants o -
" Other restricted funds :
_Pension reserve (6,248)
(5.659)
Restricted fixed asset funds
Transfer on conversion . -
DfE group capital grants . S -
General fixed assets ‘ : 43,555
43,555
Total restricted funds '37,896
: ljnrestricted funds A
General funds E ’ ' T 422
Total funds . 38,318

Income Expenditure

£'000

19,887

50 .

2,381
6,219
37

 (4,759)

55,980

-23,815

31,630
535

32,165

2,730

58,710

(30,771)

Gains,

losses and

transfers

£'000 - " £'000
(19,220) - 524
T (25) -
(2,737) -
.(6,219) -
(37) -
(1,110) 2,700
(29,348) 3,224
- (31,630)
- (535)
(920) 31,838
(920) (327)
(30,268) 2,897
(503) (197)
2,700

{Continued) :

Balance at
31 August’
2017
£'000

1,424
25

2,452

68,957
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19 Funds

A current year 12 months and prior. year 12 months c_:bmbihed position is as follows: ’

Balance at
1 September
2016
. O - £'000.
Restricted general funds ' t
General Annual Grant (GAG) 233

. Start up grants ‘ -
Other DfE / ESFA grants 356
Other government grants -
Other restricted funds ] C-
Pension reserve © (6,248) .

(5,659)

Restl;icted fixed asset funds '
Transfer on conversion .
DfE group capital grants : -

General fixed assets 43,555
43,555

Income Expenditure

£'000

41,342
" 50
. 4,857

12,775 '

37
(4,759)

54,302

Total restricted funds 37,896 .

‘ Unrestricted funds 4 A
- General funds . : ‘42

N

Total funds - 38,318

4231

91,515

Gains,

losses and

transfers.

£°000 ) £°000

(41,999) 424

(50) -

(5,213) -
(12;775)

@ -

(2,578) 5,023

. (62,652) 5,447

- - (31,630)

- - (1,352)

(1,884) 32,877

- (1,884) (105)

(64,536) 5342 .

(1,394) : (319)

- (65,930) 5,023

(Continued)

Balance at
31 August
T 2018 -
- £'000

2,940

68,926
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19 Funds -

Total funds analysis by academy

Fund balances at 31 August 2018 were allocated as follows:
_Hartley Primary School

Upton Cross Primary .

John F Kennedy School

_Sheringham Primary School : _ |
. Learning in Harmony Trust : :

Blenheim Primary School

Drew Primary School

Greenways Primary School -

Total before fixed assets fund and pension reserve

Restricted fixed asset fund
I_?ension reserve

Total funds

‘Total cost analysis by academy

Expenditure incurred by.each academy during the year was as follows:

2018
£'000

2,93

B e N L P I N N N N

2,940

74,548
(8,562)

68,926

(Continued)

2017 -
£'000

- e D

- 3,894

3,901

74,473
(9,417)

68,957

: Teaching and Other support Educational  Other costs . Total
educational staff costs supplies ‘excluding :
support staff 4 ) depreciation ~ .
£'000 £'000 £000 £000 . £000
Hartley Primary School o o 3,560 345 : 75 805 4,785
. Upton Cross Primary R . 3873 . . 245 . 64 972 5,154
John F Kennedy School o 3,314 445 . - 20 ~ 503 4,282
Sheringham Primary School .- 3,320 . 412 .~ 93 1,076 . 4,901 .
Learning'in Harmony TrUst ’ . 287 - 1,633 _ 74 . 813 2,807
. Blenheim Primary School . 1,985 920 ' 37 387 3,329
Drew Primary School 1,960 - 251 . 42 - 758 3,011
. Greehwéyé Primary School : . 3,031 - 649 - 80 695 ..4,455
21,330 14,900 485 6,009 32,724
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20 Analysis of net assets between funds

21 .

Unrestricted ~ Restricted funds: Total
Funds General Fixed asset Funds
£000 £000 £'000 £'000
- Fund balances at 31 August 2018 are
" represented by: .- ) . .
Tangible fixed assets - ) ' - - 74,548 74,548
‘Current assets - ' 2,940 3,809 - . 8,749
Creditors falling due within one year - - (3,809) - (3,809)
. Defined benefit pension liability - (8,562) - (8,562)
Total net assets ~ 2,940 (8,562) "~ 74,548 68,926
Unrestricted - Restricted funds:’ Total
Funds General Fixed asset Funds
. : £000 £'000 £000 £'000
- Fund balances at 31 August 2017 are . ~
represented by: : ) .
Tangible fixed assets ' . - o - 74,473 74,473
Current assets 4 | 2452 . 3,848 L 6,300
Creditors falling due within one year ‘ ' - (2,399) Co- (2,399) -
Defined benefit pension liability - (9,417) - (9,417)
Total net assets - ; Co . 2,452 (7,968) 74,473 68,957

Pensions and similar obligations

The academy trust's employees belong to two principal pension schemes: the Teachers' Pension Scheme

England and Wales (TPS) for academic and related staff; and the Local Government Pension Scheme

(LGPS) for non-teaching staff, which is managed by London Borough of Newham and Essex County ‘
Councul Both are multi-employer defined benefit schemes.

The pensmn ‘costs are assessed in accordance with the advnce of independent qualified actuaries. The
latest actuarial valuation of the TPS related to the penod ended 31 March 2012 and that of the LGPS
related to the period ended 31 March 2016. .

AContnbutnons amounting to £368k (2017 £323k were payable to the schemes at 31 August 2018 and are

mcluded within creditors.

Teachers' Pension Scheme

_Introduction
- The Teachers' Pension Scheme (TPS) is a statutory, contributory, defi ned beneﬁt scheme, governed by the

Teachers’ Pension Scheme Regulations 2014. Membership is automatic for full-time teachers in academies
and, from 1 January 2007, automatic for teachers in part-time employment following appointment or a
change of contract, although they are,able to opt out.

The TPS is an unfunded scheme and members contnbute on a 'pay as you go' basis - these contributions
along with those made by employers are credited to the Exchequer Retirement and other pension benefits

" are paid by public funds provided by Parliament.
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.21 .

Pensions and similar obligations ‘ ’ : R (Continued)

Valuation of the Teachers’ Pension Scheme : )
The Government Actuary, using normal actuarial principles, conducts a formal actuarial review of the TPS

" in accordance with the Public Service Pensions (Valuations' and Employer Cost Cap) Directions 2014

published by HM Treasury. The aim of the review is to specify the level of future contributions. Actuarial
scheme valuations are dependent on assumptions about the value of future costs, design of benefits and
many other factors. The latest actuarial valuation of the TPS was carried out as at 31 March 2012 and in

-accordance with the Public Service Pensions (Valuations and Employer Cost Cap) Directions 2014. The

valuati»on report was published by-the Department for Education on 9 June 2014.

o The key elements of the valuation and subsequent consultation are:

« employer contribution rates set at 16.48% of pen5|onable pay (including a 0.08% employer
administration charge

+ total scheme'liabilities (pensions currently in payment and the estimated cost of future benefits) for
service to the effective date of £191,500 million, and notional assets (estimated future contributions
together with the notional investments held at the valuation date) of £176,600 million glvmg a
notional past service deficit of £14,900 million

« an employer cost cap of 10.9% of pensionable pay will be applied to future valuations

"« the assumed real rate of return is 3.0%-in excess of prices and 2% in excess of earnings. The rate
. of real earnings growth is assumed to be 2.75%. The assumed nominal rate of return is 5.06%

The TPS valuation for 2012 déte_rmined an eﬁmployer rate of 16.4%, which was:payable from September
2015. The next valuation of the TPS is currently underway based on April 2016 data, whereupon the
employer contribution rate is expected to be.reassessed and will be payable from 1 April 2019.

The employer's pension posts paid to the TPS in the period amounted to £1,657k (2017: £1 ,653k). -

" A copy of the valuation 'feport and supporting documentation is on the Teachers’ Pensions website.

_ Under the definitions set out in FRS 102, the TPS is an unfunded multi-employer pension scheme. The

academy trust has accounted for its contributions to the scheme as if it were a defined contribution
scheme. The academy trust has set out above the information available on the scheme.

Local Government Pension Scheme

The LGPS is a funded deﬁ'ned-bleneﬂt scheme, with the assets held in separate trustee-administered
funds. The total contributions are as noted below. The agreed contribution rates for future years are % for
employers and % for employees. The estlmated value of employer contnbutlons for the forthcomlng year is
£435k. - .

Parliament has agreed, at the request of the Secretary of State for Education, to a guarantee that, in the
event of academy closure, outstanding Local Government Pension Scheme liabilities would be met by the
Department for Education. The guarantee came into force on 18 July 2013.

. Total contributions made ' : . : 2018 2017

£'000 £'000

Employer's.contributions . o 1163 687

- Employees' contributions : ' ' . 332 227
 Total contributions | o 1,495 914
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- .21 Pensions and similar obligations

Principal actuarial assumptions

Rate of increases in salaries

~ Rate of increase for pensions in payment
Discount rate
Inflation assumption (CPI)

2018 -
0/° -

(Continued)

2017

% :

The current mortallty assumptions include suff cuent allowance for future improvements m mortahty rates

The assumed life expectatlons on retirement age 65 are:’

2018
: _ Years
Retiring today N
- Males 224
~ -Females - 249
. Retiring in-20 years ' ’
- Males 246
- Females - 27.2
Scheme liabilities would have been affected by.changes in assumptions as follows:
2018
_ £'000
Discount rate + 0.1% 410
Discount rate - 0.1% 422
Mortality assumption + 1 year 496
Mortality assumption - 1 year -480
Pension rate +0.1% - 371
Pension rate -0.1% -358
Salary rate +0.1%
Salary rate -0.1% -63
. The acaderhy trust’s share of the assets in the scheme ' 2018 -
’ ' ‘ ’ Fair value -
£'000’
Equities 4,198
Other bonds © 562
Cash ) ’
Alternative assets 284
Property 648 -
" Other assets - 795
Total market value of assets 6,887
Actual return on scheme assets - gain/(loss) 337

400 -

2017 .

Years

223
245

248
271

. 2017
. £'000
(205)

211

213

208
175
(170)

35

(35)

2017
Fair value
£'000

3,089
- 631
621 .
363
391

5,095

320
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21 - Pensions and similar obligations -

- Amounts recognised in the statement of financial activities .

Current service cost
Interest income
Interest cost

Total operating charge
Changeé in the present value of defined benefit bbligations

Obligations at 1 September 2017
Obligations acquired on conversion
Current service cost
Interest cost

. Employee contributions
Actuarial gain
Benefits paid

At 31 August 2018

Changes in the fair value of the academy trust's share of scheme assets

Assets at 1 September 2017 -

Assets acquired on conversion

Interest income

Actuarial gain

Employer contributions

Employee contributions .-
 Benefits paid

At 31 August 2018

- 2018
£'000

2,400
(151)
382

2,631

2018
£'000

- 14,512

2,400
382
332

. (2,137)

(40)

15,449 -

2018

£'000

5,095 .

151
186
1,163

(40)

6,887

(Continued)

2017
£'000

1,667
(95)

1,921

2017
£000

. 8,342
6,410
- 1,667
349 -
227
(2,475)

14,512

.49-



LEARNING IN-HARMONY MULTI ACADEMY TRUST

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2018

22 Reconciliation of net (expenditure)/income to net cash flow from operatmg actlvmes

Net (expendlture)/mcome for the reportlng perlod (as per the Statement of
Fmancual Activities)

Adjusted for: .

Net surplus on conversion to academy

Capital grants from DfE/ESFA and other capltal income .
Investment mcome receivable

Defined benefit pension costs less contributions payable
Defined benefit pension net finance cost
Depreciation of tangible fixed assets
Decrease/(increase) in debtors
Increase-in creditors

- Net cash provided by/(used in) operating activities

23 Contingent liabilities .

"2018
£'000

(2,354)

(817)

- (9)
1,237
231
964
789
1,410

1,451

2017
£'000

27,940

(28,384) -
(535)
(2)

856
254
920
(1,601)
216

(336)

During the period of the Funding Agreement, in the event of the sale or disposal by other means of any
-asset for which a Government capital grant was received, the Academy is required either to re-invest the
‘proceeds or to repay to the Education Funding Agency the same proportion of the proceeds of the sale or
disposal as equates with the proportion of the original cost met by the Secretary of State.
Upon termination of the Funding Agreement, whether as a result of the Secretary of State or the Academy

serving notice, the Academy shall repay to the Secretary of State sums determined by-reference to:

+ the value at that time of the Academys site and premlses and other assets held for the purpose of .

the Academy; and

+ the extent to which expenditure incurred in- providing those assets was met by payments by the

Secretary of State under the Fundmg Agreement

24 Commitments under operatmg Ieases '

At 31 August 2018 the total of the academy trust's future minimum Iease payments under non-cancellable

operatmg leases was:

Amounts due within one year
Amounts due in two and five years

- 2018

£000

33
84

117

2017
£000
63
17

180
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25 .

26

-27

.28

Related pérty transactions

Owing to the nature of the Academy's operations and the composrtlon of the Board of Governors-being
drawn from local public and private sector organisations, it is inevitable that transactions will take place with
organisations in which a member of the Board of Governors may have an interest. All transactions
involving such organisations are conducted at arm's length and in accordance with the Academy's fi nancial
regulations and normal procurement procedures. .

Durmg the year the academy trust paid £nil (2017: £8 400) to Best Practice Network Ltd of which P Haslet
is a director for leadership and professional development courses. At the balance sheet date, the academy
trust owed £nil (2017: £nil) to Best Practice Network.

Post balance sheet evente -

After the year end, Temple Sutton Primary School converted to academy’ trust status and joined Learning in
Harmony Multi Academy Trust.

Members' liability

Each member .of the charitable company undertakes to contribute to the assets of the company in the
event of it being:wound up while he or she is a member, or within one year after he or she ceases to be a
member, such amount as may be required, not exceeding £10 for the debts and |Iabl|ItIeS contracted before
he or she ceases to be a member : :

- Agency arrangements

The academy trust distributes 16- 19 bursary funds to students as an agent for ESFA. In the accounting
period ending 31 August 2018 the academy trust received £6k (2017 £6k ) and disbursed £6k (2017: £6k )
from the fund.
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